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Hon. Albert E. Bleeper, Uovernor:

The following report relative to aids, gifts, grants and donations to
railroads and outline of the development of railreads in Michigan, pre-
pared by the statistical department of the Michigan Railroad Commis-
sion containg 80 much information of interest and value te the publie
that it is deemed advisable that it be preserved by being printed and ap-
propriately bound. -

The information contained in the report has been drawn from various
documents, records, ynd numerous other sources and carefully compiled.
It will be of permanent value to the Biate in its relations with the carrier
corporations, especially d® continned regulation iz likely to be a factor
in Htate government. The Commigsion has recommended that five hun-
dred copies be printed. ’

The report might be furnished to persons desiting it at a price practie
ally- equaling the cost of printing and binding. '

MICHIGAN RAILROAD COMMISSION.

A. A. KEEIBER,
Chairman.

C. L. GLASGOW,

C. 8. CUNNINGHAM.






REPPORT.

To the Michigan Railroad Commission :

Tn July, 1914, the Honorable Charles A. Prouty, Director of Valua-
tion of the I[unterstute Cownmerce Commission, suggested the practi-
cability of this Couunission co-operating with the national body in the
collection of data pertaining to nids, gifts, grants and dopations to the
carriers by the Btates or municipa]l subdivisions of the Btates, to aid
in the construction of the varions railroads. This request received the
Favorable consideration of this Commission, and under instructions from
the late Hon. Lawton T. Hemans, then Chairman of the Commission, the
writer undertook the research suggested by Mr. Prouty.

The routine work in statistics and kindred phases of the Commission’s
duties have made it necessary that thisz research be subordinated to the
regular work of the office. For this reason report upon the snbject has
been so long delayed. This resenrch was taken np in Auguoat, 1914, and
a preliminary study of the subject disclosed that if the results were to
be of practicul value, not only the subject of aids, gifts, grants and
donations regunired attention, but that the historic connection of the
corporate entities receiving such financial assiztance in the yeurs of
ruilroad development shounld be traced to the companies now possessing
aud operating the railroads of the State.

Hince faking op ihe matter. such time ench vear as regular work
permiital har been devoted to this mlhjel'- The tesults of the work
iz herewith presented.

Public support of railroad entcrpnscs in Michigan hus been given
in diverse ways and has been a factor in their development from time
to time, almost from the beginning. The people of Michigan. when it
waa yet a Territory, were guick to appraise the value of railroads as
a factor in the economic development of the State, aud they first turned
to eorporate organizations gz the means of promoting their construection.
Asd early as July 31, 1830, the Legislative Council of the Territory author-
izedd the incorporation of the “I'resident, Idrectors and Company of the
Tantige and Detroit Railway Company” and granted it a franchise alung
the “United Btates' road. cummonh' culled the Baginaw Road * *
from the Village of DPontiae to the City of Detroit.” Thix was the first
railway charter granted in the State. It does not appear that any nse
was ever e of this lranchize. On Jane 29, 1832, the “Detroit and

Joseph Railroad Company” was authorized and became the germ
or tht- present Michigan Central Railroad main line. Om April 16, 1833,
“The Romen amd Mt. Clemens REailvroad Compuny”™ was anthovized, but
failed to muke progress.

On April 22, 1834 “The Erie and Kalamazoo Railroad Company” wags
incorporated and still remaing active. This company was the first to
place its road in operation within the State and is generally stated to
be the first railroad company beginning operations west of Schenectady,
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New York. Its road was leased to the Michigan Bouthern Railroad
Company {n 1849 and is still operated by the New York Central Rail-
road Company uvnder that lease. On March 7, 1834, the “Detroit and
Pootine Railrond Company” was incorporated and finally built and
operated its road. ¥t is today a part of the Grand Trunk Railway Bys-
tem. On March 4, 1834, “The SBhelby and Detroit Railroad Company®
was authorized and seems to have constructed its road according to the -
methods of that time and carried on traffic to Milwaukee Junction, De-
troit, for a time with horse power, but unsuccessfully. After many
years this road was finally utilized as a part of the Deiroit and Bay
City Railway, now Bay City Divirion of the Michigan Central Rail-
road. During the year 1835 the Legislative Couneil anthorized four
other railroad corporations, none of which seem to have made any
progress in earrying out their purpoges. Of these ten corporations
authorized during the last six years of terrilorial government, four
partially or fully carried omt their purposes and their property has
pamsed to the exiating railroads of the carriers.

During these gix years g growing interest in railroads was evident,
eapecially among the public and businessmen of the Btate. The end of
railroad development was even then proven to those pioneers. The
means at firet employed, however, were not adequate to reach this end
as rapidly as the restless ambitions of those pioneers demanded. In
18356 the Legislative Council commenced the policy of making the rail-
road companies banking corporations as well, and requiring these bank-
ing institutions to hold the stock of the allied railroad corporations “as
a secarity for the redemption of all potes and debis of said bank” as
& condition precedent to exercising their banking fonection. This plan
was merely a phase of the banking practices of the time, which has be-
come famoue in our history as the era of “wild cat” banking. In the
gucceeding years several such banks were anthorized oo this plan among
the then strnggling railroad companies. It does not appear that the
plan wae really of much value in promoting railroad development and
eventually contributed much to the financial disasters that ensued in
1837 and suceeeding years. It was merely an incident in the many plans
advaneed to hasten internal development of the Btate.

After the admission of Michipan as a Hiate the means of securing
railroad development continued the leading subject of public interest,
and new plane were being advanced. In 1838 two acts were passed au-
. thorising the Btate to, in effect, guarantee certain issues of stock of
the “Detroit & Pontiac Railroad Company” and “The Palmyra & Jack-
sonburg Railroad Company,” and two further acts passed authorized
a State loan of $100,000 each to the “Allegun and Marshall Railroad
Company” and “The Ypsilanti and Tecumsch Railroad Company.” These
acte were the first inetances of. public support directly to the many
railrond projects then wought to be promoted. While these measnres
were not direct aids, they materially advanced the prospects of those
companies, as they involved the Btate in their financial affairs and
ultimately lead to the Btate assuming control of the property of all
of them except the Detroit & Ponotiac Railroad, All of them except the
Ypeilanti and Tecumseh Railroad became, and are today, a part of our
railroad g;

Aet No. 67, approved March 20, 1837, authorized the Board of Com-
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missioners of Internal Improvemenis to undertake the construction of
railroads on the “Northern,” “Central” and “Southern” rontes deseribed
in the act. Bubsequent acts extended the support of these Btate pro-
jects. The “Northern” never reached a very advanced stage of construe-
tion. The two latter, however, were gradually construeted by the Board
from the water connections at Deiroit River and River Raigin, respec-
tively, wealerly; but not without discouragement, some mismanagement,
and Innumerable unforeseen difficulties. The operation of these roads
never proved them good investments for the Btate, and they guickly
deteriorated becanse of the use of materials of construction not capable
of resisting the traffic to be borne mor the elements. Gradually public
sentiment came to oppose or greatly to obstruct the carrying out of the
original projects. Finally in 1848 the Btate passed acts ineorporating
the “Michigan Central Railroad Company”and “The Michigan Bouthern
Ruilroad Company” and authorized the sale fo the respective entities of
the Central and Bouthern Railroads. The sales were made, the Btate
receiving for the Central Railroad $2,000.000 and for the Sonthern Rail-
road $500,000 in aecordance with the ferms of the acts authorizing the
transactions. During and after the Legislative session of 1842 it seems
to have been the policy of the Legislature to disengage the SBtute from
its finunciu] entanglements with railroads, yet even in the acts incor-
porating the Michigan Central and Michigan Southern companies, per-
haps in deference to the practice in the early charters, sections were in-
eluded specifying a time and method by which the State could re-acqnire
these properties.

The Btate’s experience in the operation and ‘construction of railroads
was not one of ungualified success, but, no doubt, it served to fix across
the southern part of the Btate two of the important easterly and wester-
1y lines of the country. The Michigan Southern has been and countinues
to be one of the great railroads of the United States, while the Michigan
Central has enjoyed an nnbroken history of finuncial and operating
sugcess and promises to be of greater and greater relative importance
to the Btate as time advances.

With the sale of the Central and Southern railroads, the Btate’s im-
mediate interest in railroad development ceased although as late as
1853 it was still taking mesrures to settle financial matters wherein
its credit had been pledged by the acts of 1838. Turing the period of
public ownership it bad antborized und invested in railroad propertiea
the following public funds:

‘Total amownt “Total amount
Appropristed, expended
Central Railroad (&) .......cc0veeoen. . $1,957,833 57 §1,954,308 28
Bouthern Railroad (b) .............c00n 049,908 77
Northern Railroad ..........ccoo0iea 150,638 00 110,596 Tl
Havre Branch Railroad ............... 20,004 00 952 34
{Benate Document No, 8, 1848,
il t .nd = 5 lnﬁmdmy ﬂiﬁu.;d m lhlﬁgtghmul Rafirond Company snd Ypsl-

ﬁuﬂm ooat of the Palmyra amd Jlaknnh‘::‘r Railroad, River Ralain and Lake Erba
Rulttm-l ang l.- sanes-Bay Harbor property ara included in thia siatement,

The reversal of public interest in the railroade dates from 1842, Fol-
lowing the sale of the Central and Bouthern, in 1846, up until 1855,
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when the firat general railroad law was enacted, but seven new railroad
companies were chartered by the Legislature and all of these were
projecta to extend or construet branches to the then existing railroads,
viz.: The Michigan Central, The Michigan Bouthern and the Detroit &
Pontiae Railroads.

(M these, only one, the 8t. Joseph Valley Railroad Company, had con-
atrneted ite line by the time of the enactment of the (teneral Railroad
Law. Three of the other projects were realized after many years. Dur-
ing these years no aciive govermmental finaneial support of the railromls
seems to have been given by the State, nnd evidently railromd enterprise
wits largely regarided as a purely private enterprisc. So thoroughly had
public sentiment changed as a vesult of the unfortunate experiences
from 1336 to 1846 that the Constitution of 1850 contained four prohibi-
tions of practices that had been in vogue in the years of publiv encoura
ment and ownersip, viz.: Rections 6, 7, 8 and 9 of Artivle XIV of that
constitution. During the years following 1846, railread development
went slowly forward and on surer gronnd than the Btate had found in its
efforts from 1336 to 1846, The main lines of the Central and Bouthern
were extended westerly nnder corporate managemeni and by 1852 had
both reached Chicago. They with other lines then developing quickly
proved their usefulness to the ferritories traversed and renewed public
interest in railroad enterprise was quickened throughout the country.

Dwring the period of State construction and ownership of railroads.
as appropriations of Htate funds became Jifficult or were withheldl, the
public domain was turned to as a means of furthering the development
of the various works of internnl improvement nndertaken. On Beptem-
ber 4th, 1841, Congress mude a general grant of 50,004 acres of public
land to each of several ytates, ineluding Michigan, for purposes of internal
improvement. The aet provided that $1.25 per aere shoull he the
minituuin price at which the lands might be sold and stipulated that they
be “faithfully applied fo objects of internal hmprovelnent” within the

Btates, such as “roads, railways, brifdges, conals” ete., aml it forther

stipnlated that =nch works “when made or improved, shall be free for
the transportation of the United States mail, and munitions of war, anil
for the pasaage of their troops, without lln1 paynient of any toll what-
ever,” (5 U B Btatutes ut Large 455.)

From time to time these linds were appropriated by the Legislaiure
of this Bfate to the constenction of the railrosuls,  The Central Railrosul
received IH0HK acres by Aet Ne. 25 of 184, 64 200 zeres by Act No. 50
of 13, LI aeres by At No. 15 of 1845 sl 20,000 ueres h!' Act No. 67
of 184, The Pahoyra aml Jacksouburg Railroad (SHouthernt received
10,000 acres by Act No. 14 of 1845, This wse of the public dmnain directly
to advance the public interest was n forernuper of ihe later poliey of
grants to corporations to accomplish the same purpose,

In the Act of June 3, 1856—11 10, 8. Statutes at Large, 21,—Congress
“granted to the State of Michigan to aid in the construction of railroads
from Litile Bay de Noquet to Marquette, and thence to Ontonagon, awd
from the two last named places to the Wisconsiu State line; and also
from Awmboy, by Hillsdale and Lansing and from Girand Rapids to some
points on or near Traverse Bay; also from Gramid Haven aml Pere Mar-
quette to Flint and thence to I’ort Haron every alternate section of lanil
designated by odd wmmbers; for six seetions in wilth on each side of



